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FILED

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT .
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA NOV 8 2004 \

WEST PALM BEACH DIVISION
CLARENCE MADDOX «w
CLERK, USDC/ SDFL/WPB
CASE NO.: 04-80611-CIV-RYSKAMP/VITUNAC

LINTON LEBLANC,
Plaintiff,
Vs.
COASTAL MECHANICAL SERVICES, LLC

Defendant.
/

DEFENDANT’S MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN OPPOSITION TO
LEBLANC’S MOTION TO FILE SECOND AMENDED COMPLAINT

Defendant, COASTAL MECHANICAL SERVICES, LLC (“Coastal’’), by undersigned
counsel, opposes to the extent stated below, the Motion to File Second Amended Complaint (the
“Motion”) filed by Plaintiff’ Linton LeBlanc (“Plaintiff” or “LeBlanc”). Specifically, if the
Second Amended Complaint is allowed, it should not contain a claim for punitive damages or the
work “black” in paragraph 25.

1. The right to amend a pleading is not, as Plaintiff suggests, unlimited. In applying
Fed. R. Civ. P. 15(a), the Supreme Court has long recognized futility as one basis for denying a

motion to amend. Foman v. Davis, 371 U.S. 178, 182, 83 S. Ct. 227, 9 L.Ed.2d 222 (1962). A

proposed amendment is futile when it advances a claim that "could not withstand a motion to

dismiss." Hall v. United Ins. Co. of America, 367 F.3d 1255 (11th Cir. 2004); Simon Holdings

PLC Group of Companies U.K. v. Klenz, 878 F. Supp. 210, 213 (M.D. Fla. 1995); see also

Mabhon v. City of Largo, 829 F. Supp. 377, 385 (M.D. Fla. 1993) (refusing to allow plaintiff to

amend based on futility because claim could not be sustained under Florida law). (
!
i
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2. This Court should deny in part Plaintiff’s Motion because his demand for punitive
damages would be futile and because an allegation of fact, the use of the word “black” in 425 of
the proposed Second Amended Complaint (the “Complaint™), is clearly contradicted by
cumulative swomn testimony of LeBlanc.

L. LeBlane’s Demand for Punitive Damages Would Be Futile

3. Plaintiff’s demand for punitive damages would not survive a motion to dismiss/to
strike, and is therefore futile.

4. Plaintiff’s two-count Complaint claims that LeBlanc was allegedly harassed on
the basis of his race, and purportedly terminated in retaliation for filing a complaint of
discrimination, both in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1981." On that basis, Plaintiff demands, inter
alia, that “this Court issue an award of punitive damages in favor of Plaintiff and against
Defendant.” (See Complaint at Count One ad damnum clause, (7); and Count Two ad damnum
clause, (7)).

5. This case involves six (or less) isolated alleged instances between February 25,
2002 and December 11, 2002 in which Tony Oreo (“Oreo”), Plaintiff’s co-worker, allegedly
used racially derogatory language toward Plaintiff. See Complaint at q{ 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, and 32.
Otherwise, Plaintiff’s allegations may demonstrate inappropriate, even offensive behavior on the

part of a co-worker, but not actionable racial harrassment. See Gupta v. Florida Bd. of Regents,

212 F3d 571 (1 1" Cir. 2000); Caruso v. City of Cocoa, Florida, 260 F.Supp.2d 1191 (M.D. Fla.

2003)(holding that offensive, inappropriate conduct may be undesirable, but not actionable, and

that "Title VII is not a 'general civility code"). Apart from whether this conduct reaches the level
1.

" Such claims under §1981 are to be analyzed according to the same standards as under Title VII.
Elmahdi v. Marriott Hotel Services, Inc., 339 F.3d 645 (8" Cir. 2003); Hrobowski v.
Worthington Steel Co., 358 F.3d 473 (7™ Cir. 2004); Soto_v. John Morrell & Co., 92 Fair
Empl.Prac.Cas. (BNA) 1193 (N.D.Iowa.W.Div. 2003).
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of hostile environment harassment in the first place, it is clear that it fails to warrant an award of
punitive damages.

6. LeBlanc’s Motion to add a demand for punitive damages is futile because
LeBlanc makes nothing more than a conclusory allegation that Coastal’s alleged conduct “was
done with malice or reckless indifference to Plaintiff’s federally protected rights.” (See
Complaint at 46, 54). LeBlanc makes no allegations to establish that those in Coastal’s upper
management knew of the alleged unlawful activity and authorized or approved of such alleged
behavior.

7. Punitive damages are justified where "the complaining party demonstrates” that
the employer, (here, a corporation) "engaged in . . . discriminatory practices with malice or with
reckless indifference to the federally protected rights of an aggrieved individual." See Kolstad v.

American Dental Association, 119 S. Ct. 2118, 2125 (1999) (“an employer must at least

discriminate in the face of a perceived risk that its actions will violate federal law to be liable in
punitive damages”); 42 U.S.C. §1981a.

8. LeBlanc’s allegations do not come close to showing that the alleged
discrimination was with "malice or reckless disregard," much less that Coastal, as the corporate
employer, is liable for such discrimination. LeBlanc makes only a conclusory allegation that
Coastal acted with such level of intent; the facts alleged do not create a basis for any such
inference. Consequently, LeBlanc’s allegations are insufficient to state a claim for punitive
damages because, under applicable law, mere employment discrimination does not give rise to
punitive damages.

9. As stated by the Eleventh Circuit, “mere negligence as to the civil rights of

employees is not enough to justify punitive damages.” EEOC v. W&O, Inc., 213 F.3d 600, 611




Case 9:04-cv-80611-KLR Document 41 Entered on FLSD Docket 11/17/2004 Page 4 of 22

(11th Cir. 2000); Bemnstein v. Sephora, Div. of DFS Group L.P., 182 F.Supp.2d 1214,

1226(S.D.Fla.,2002); see, e.g., Jackson v. McCleod, 748 F.Supp. 831, 836 (S.D. Ala. 1990)

(refusing to award punitive damages even where plaintiff was intentionally restricted to working

in the kitchen because of her race); Foster v. MCI Telecommunications, Corp., 555 F. Supp. 330,

337 (D. Colo. 1983), aff’d, 773 F.2d 1116 (10th Cir. 1985) (refusing to award punitive damages
even where defendant had displayed "blatant racism" toward the plaintiff because "the evidence

failed to implicate any official company policy in the discrimination"); Lindsey v. Angelica

Corporation, 508 F. Supp. 363 (E.D. Mo. 1981) (denying punitive damages where the plaintiff, a
black female, had been rejected for an assistant manager position because of her race).

10. A punitive damages claim should be stricken where the complaint makes only
conclusory allegations of malice or reckless disregard. In the instant complaint, as in Angel v.

American Multi-Cinema, Inc., Case No. 01-cv-2049-T-23EAJ] (M.D. Fla. Dec. 19, 2001)

(Merryday, J.),

...[t]he plaintiff’s notably sparse complaint lacks allegations that satisfy the
standard for punitive damages. With respect to ‘malice’ and ‘reckless
indifference,” the complaint’s ‘General Allegations’ section includes a single,
conclusory assertion that ‘[a]t all times material, Defendant acted with malice and
with reckless disregard for Plaintiff’s federal and state protected rights.’

11.  Consequently, the Court in Angel v. American Multi-Cinema, Inc. struck the

demand for punitive damages under federal (and state) discrimination statutes. A true and

correct copy of the order is attached hereto as Exhibit “A.” See also Jozwiak v. Walt Disney

Imagineering, et al., Case No. 6:03-cv-696-Orl-28KRS (M.D. Fla. September 4, 2003) (Antoon,

J.) (striking punitive damage demand in case under Florida Civil Rights Act, an analogue to Title
VII, because complaint failed to offer more than mere conclusory statements of intentional and

malicious conduct) (a true and correct copy is attached hereto as Exhibit “B”); Chambers v.
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Walt Disney World Co., Case No. 99-1218-Civ-Orl-19B (M.D. Fla., Jan. 6, 2000) (Sharp, J.)

(striking punitive damage demand in race discrimination case) (copy attached as Exhibit “C”);
12.  Moreover, LeBlanc has failed to allege facts that would support a claim against
the corporate defendant for punitive damages. Indeed, the Complaint clearly alleges that Oreo
was the only purported harasser. Oreo is a co-worker, not a manager. LeBlanc fails to describe
any officer, director or managing agent who acted toward him in such a way as to allow punitive

damages. Cf., Reed v. Procter & Gamble Distributing Company, 144 F.R.D. 2, 4 (D. Me. 1992)

(a person is a "managing agent" for purposes of Fed. R. Civ. P. 30(b)(6) if he or she, inter alia,
has general power to exercise judgment and discretion with respect to corporate matters);

Seaboard Air Lines v. Ford, 92 So0.2d 160, 168 (Fla. 1955) (the term "managing agent" is

applicable to persons "of the same general nature or class" as officers and directors).

13. Under controlling law, LeBlanc may only claim punitive damages by showing
that those in upper management knew of the alleged unlawful activity and authorized or
approved of such acts, or that Coastal had a corporate policy causing such acts. See Splunge v.
Shoney’s Inc., 97 F.3d 488, 491-91 (11th Cir. 1996) (corporate employer not liable for punitive
damages where upper management had only "constructive knowledge" of supervisors’
harassment of plaintiffs; employer must have "willful blindness" to unlawful acts); Bailey v.

MCI Telecommunications Corp., 555 F. Supp. 330, 337 (D. Col. 1983), aff’d, 773 F.2d 1116

(10th Cir. 1985) (no official company policy implicated in the discrimination); Angel v.

American Multi-Cinema, Inc., Case No. 01-CV-2049-T-23EAJ (Exhibit “A”’); Chambers v. Walt

Disney World Co., Case No. 99-1218-Civ-Orl-19B (Exhibit “C”).

14.  Here, LeBlanc makes no factual allegations to suggest any kind of malicious

intent or scheme on the part of Coastal, or any others to support a claim for punitive damages.
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Therefore, Coastal’s claim for punitive damages would not withstand a motion to dismiss or to
strike, and, as such, this Court should deny LeBlanc’s Motion with regard to LeBlanc’s demand
for an award of punitive damages.

II. LeBlanc’s Use of the Word “Black” in 4 25 of the Complaint Does Not Comport
With Record Evidence and Would Therefore Be Futile.

15.  In 9 25 of the Complaint, LeBlanc asserts that: “Oreo then said to Plaintiff: “now
your black ass is mine, mother fucker!” (italics added)

16.  However, in his sworn deposition, Plaintiff testified no less than six times that the
actual words used were “mother fucker, your ass is mine” (LeBlanc Deposition P. 201, Ln 15-17;
P. 260, Ln 22-23; P. 284, Ln 16, Ln 19-20; P. 321, Ln 23-24; P. 322, Ln 23-24; a true and correct
copy of the foregoing excerpts from LeBlanc’s Deposition are attached hereto as Composite
Exhibit “D.”)

17. Similarly, in Exhibit 1 to Plaintiff’s Charge of Discrimination, Amended Charge
of Discrimination, and Second Amended Charge of Discrimination at Y15, Plaintiff asserted that
the words used were: “Now your fucking ass is mine!” A true and correct copy of p. 2 of Exhibit
1 is attached hereto as Exhibit “E”

18.  In each of these excerpts from the record, Plaintiff did not include the word
“black’ in his testimony regarding that particular alleged sentence. Notwithstanding the record,
however, the word “black” appears in the allegation with regard to the same sentence in
Plaintiff’s proposed Complaint. See Complaint at § 25. It is self-evident that, in a case based on
allegations of racial harassment, this distinction is of critical importance. Because the record is
clear that this allegation in the Complaint cannot be true,” the Court should deny Plaintiff’s

1.

2 In light of the undisputed record, it is also noteworthy that the particular allegation at issue
would constitute a violation of Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 11(b)(3), which states that: “By
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Motion with regard thereto. It is no more allowable for a party to amend a pleading to add a
claim which has been negated by that party’s prior clear testimony than it is to contradict such

testimony in an affidavit opposing summary judgment. See Van T. Junkins and Assoc. v. U.S.

Industries, Inc., 736 F.2d 656, 657 (11" Cir. 1984).

WHEREFORE Defendant Coastal Mechanical Services, LLC respectfully requests that
this Court deny in part, as set forth herein, Plaintiff’s Motion for Leave to File Second Amended
Complaint, and that the Court award such other, further relief as the Court deems just and proper.

SHUTTS & BOWEN LLP
Attorneys for Defendant
300 South Orange Ave., Suite 1000
Orlando, Florida 32801-5403
Mailing address: P.O. Box 4956
Orlando, Florida 32802-49
(407) 423-3200

Charles Robinson Fawsett, P.A.
Florida Bar No. 023846

i.

presenting to the court . . . a pleading . . . an attorney . . . is certifying that to the best of the
person’s knowledge, information, and belief, formed after an inquiry reasonable under the
circumstances,- . . . (3) the allegations and other factual contentions have evidentiary support or,
if specifically so identified, are likely to have evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity
for further investigation or discovery; . . .
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was served by U.S.

mail this 8th day of November 2004 upon:

Matthew Jay Lane, Esquire
1015 10th Street
Lake Park, Florida 33403
o
CJ\'\/ <
COUNSEL {

ORLDOCS 10279104 1
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 9
- -
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA uff'”'.-‘ﬁgél\JJ/
TAMFPA DIVISION LU T
STEVEN ANGEL, AR
T evig

Plaintiff,
v, CASE NO. 8:01-cv-2045-T->3 EAJ

AMERICAN MULTI-CINEMA, INC.,

Defendant.

ORDER

The defendant moves to strike the plaintiff’s demand for

punitive damages (Doc. 4). The plaintiff, who asserts claims

for relief for employment discrimination under the Americans Wir Fa

Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seqg. (“ADA”) and the

Florida Civil Rights Act, § 760.10 Fla. Stat. et seg. (“FCRA”),

oppocses the motion to strike (Doc. 8).

Employment discrimination in violation of the ADA or FCRA

entitles a plaintiff to recover punitive damages if an employer

acts with “malice” or “reckless indifference.” See 42 U.s.C. §

198la(b) (1); Kolstad v. American Dental Ass’'n, 118 S. Ct. 2118,

2125 (1%899).! Punitive damages are available against a corporate

employer either (1) when the employer’s senior management

personnel authorize, approve, or pcssess actual knowledge of an

! The defendant asserts, and the plaintiff does not
dispute, that the standard for punitive damages under the FCRA is
the same or stricter than the standard for punitive damages under

the ADA.

EXHIBIT

i__A
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employee’s discriminatory acts that are committed with malice or

reckless indifference or (2) when the employer maintains a

corporate policy of willful blindness to discriminatory acts.

Splunge v. Shoney’'s, Inc., 87 F.3d 488, 451 (11" Cir. 1896) .

The plaintiff’s notably sparse complaint lacks allegations

that satisfy the standard for punitive damages. With respect to

” the complaint’s “General

“malice” and “reckless indifference,

Allegations” section includes a single, conclusory assertion that

“lalt all times material, Defendant acted with malice and with

reckless disregard for Plaintiff’s Federal and State protected

rights.” Neithexr the allegations in the “Facts” sectiocn of the

complaint nor the assertions setting forth each specific count
identify any act or omission that reasonably supports a finding
cr inference of malice or reckless disregard for the plaintiff’s

civil rights. Even under the liberal pleading standarxd in Rule

8, Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, the plaintiff’s brocad,

conclusory statement, without corroborating allegations

describing even vaguely the conduct in question (e.g., when,

where, how, etc.) insufficiently notifies the defendant of the

Williams v. lLear Operations

grounds for the claim. See, e.g.,

Corp., 73 F. Supp. 2d 1377, 1381 (N.D. Ga. 18839) (“conclusory,

bare bones allegation” insufficient to apprise defendant of basis

of claim).

Similarly, with respect to the corporate defendant’s

liability for punitive damages, the plaintiff fails to allege a

- 2 -
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single act or omissiocon attributable to the corporate employer

{e]

(i.e., corporate management personnel) that would support a

finding or inference of either the defendant’s knowledge,

autherization, or approval of discrimination or a corporate

policy cf willful blindness.

Accordingly, upon consideration, the motion to strike (Doc.

4) 1s GRANTED and the plaintiff’s demand for punitive damages is

STRICKEN from the complaint.

Florida, on D‘UMMW Lellﬂ' , 2001,

J&ZAD/\/\WMM

STEVEN D. MERRYDAY
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

ORDERED in Tampa,
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COHET: ‘
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 0400 . ' i1,

[ RN fl._l;:

ORLANDO DIVISION

THOMAS L. JOZWIAK,

Plaintiff,

-vVs- Case No. 6:03<cv-696-Ori-2BKRS

WALT DISNEY IMAGINEERING, WALT
DISNEY IMAGINEERING RESEARCH &
DEVELOPMENT, INC., WALT DISNEY
WORLD COMPANY,

Defendants.

ORDER

This cause came on for consideration without oral argument on the motion of
Defendant, Walt Disney World Co., to strike” claims for damages included in the Complaint
of Plaintiff,? Thomas L. Jozwiak. In Count | of the Complaint, Plaintiff alleges Defendant
violated his rights under the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 ("ADEA"), 29
U.S.C. § 621, et seq., and in Count {l of the Complaint Plaintiff claims Defendant violated
his rights under Chapter 760, Fiorida Statutes, The Florida Civil Rights Act ("FCRA"). In both
counts the Plaintiff has claimed compensatory and punitive damages. Defendant's motion

seeks an order from this court striking the claim for compensatory and punitive damages

'Defendant’'s Motion to Strike Plaintiff's Demand for Compensatory and Punitive

Damages Under the ADEA and Punitive Damages Under the FCRA and Supporting
Memorandum of Law, Doc. 18.

Plaintiffs Memorandum of Law in Opposition to Defendant's Motion to Strike
Plaintiffs Demand for Punitive Damages Under the FCRA, Doc. 21.

EXHIBIT

i B

—_—
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requested in Count | and punitive damages requested in Count ll. The motion to strike must
be granted.

The parties have agreed that Defendant's motion should be granted as to Count |
because under the ADEA Plaintiff's relief is limited to an award of wages and in the event
of a finding of willful violations, “additional equal amount”. 29 U.S.C. § § 626(b), 216(b).
There is no provision for punitive damages.

The parties disagree with regard to whether Plaintiff's claim for punitive damages for
violation of the FCRA should be allowed to stand, Defendant contending that Plaintiff's
factual allegations are insufficient to support the claim. The FCRA parallels its federal
counterpart, Title VI, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq. and is to be construed similarly. Morrow

v. Duval County School Board, 514 So.2d 1086, 1087 (Fla. 1887). Applying Title Vil

standards, punitive damages are allowed only where “the complaining party demonstrates”

that the employer “engaged in . . . discriminatory practices with malice or with reckless

indifference to the federally protected rights ofan ann’eved individual.” Kolstad v. American
Dental Ass'n, 527 U.S. 526, 534 {1999) (quoting42 U.S.C. § 1981a(b)(1)). More is required
to meet this standard than mere conclusory statements that defendant acted intentionally

and with malice. Angel v. American Multi-Cinema, Inc., Case No. 01-CV-2049-T-23EAJ ‘

(M.D. Fla. Dec. 19, 2001). Plaintiff has failed to meet this standard.
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It is therefore ORDERED that Defendant's Motion to Strike is GRANTED without
prejudice.

DONE and ORDERED in Chambers, Orlando, Florida this __ 7 = day of September,

L

N ANTOONT
nned States District Judge

b 47
Copies fumished to:
Counsel of Record

Aa-



Case 9:04-cv-80611-KLR Document 41 Entered on FLSD Docket 11/17/2004

Date Printed:

Notice sent to:

V’;‘f{pﬁ

FILE cCoPrPY

08/04/2003

Bernard H. Dempsey Jr., Esg.
Dempsey & Sasso

3830 N. Orange Ave., Suite 2700
P.O. Box 1745

Orlando, FL 32801-1748%

6:03-cv-00696 nrs

Lillian N. Chaves, Esg.
P.0O. Box 141453
Gainesville, FL 32614-1453

6:03-cv-00696 nrs

Mary Ruth Houston, Esg.
Shutts & Bowen LLP

300 8. Orange Ave., Suite 1000
P.0. Box 4356

Orlando, FL 328B02-4556

6:03-cv~-00D8696 nrs

Paul J. Scheck, Esg.
Shutts & Bowen LLP

300 S. Orange Ave., Suite 1000
P.0O. Box 4856

Orlando, FL 328B02-49%56

6:03~-cv-0D0ESH nrs
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FILED

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT g _
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDAg prp 03 pus . 30 51 L\g\‘/
ORLANDO DIVISION PO

CLERK.U & DISTRICT COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT LF FLORID
GRLANID. FLORIDA

VICTOR CHAMBERS,

Plaintiff, CASE NO. 9?—1 18-CIV- ORL
Vs.
WALT DISNEY WORLD CO., 7“7 ﬂm

petentar @ﬁ”

DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO TRII\E PLAIVTIF
DEMANDS FOR PUNITIVE DAMAGES IN HIS AMENDED
AND MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN SUPPORT THEREQF

The Defendant, Walt Disney World Co. ("Worldco"), by its undersigned counsel and
pursuant to Rules 12(b)(6) and/or 12(f), Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, hereby moves for an order
striking paragraph 9 of the Plaintiff’s First Amended Complaint and Demand For Jury Trial (the

“Amended Complaint”) and all of the Plaintiff’s claims for punitive damages.! In support of this

motion, Worldco states:

510 17001K

1. This acuon was instituted against Werldeo by Victor Chambers (

xm
DH:!

R

L8N0D 1 T W30
N2l HY LIV 00

former Worldco employee, on September 24, 1999. By Order dated November 9, 1

m
J

CA

vomﬁﬁa 'o[@vmo

YORIO 1 41

! This motion is properly framed as a motion to strike. E.g., Dinkla v, University of
Florida Jacksonville Physicians, Inc., 10 Fla. L. Weekly Fed. D521 (M. D. Fla. Mar.
9, 1997); Dah Chong Hong, Ltd. v. Silk Greenhouse, Inc., 719 F. Supp. 1072 (M.D.
Fla. 1989). However, even if such a motion were inappropriate, the instant motion
can and should be treated as a motion to dismiss pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6).
Brown v. Seebach, 763 F. Supp. 574, 583 (S8.D. Fla. 1991); Professional Asset
Management. Inc. v. Penn Square Bank, N.A., 566 F. Supp. 134, 137 (W.D. Okla.

1983).
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